
TBM 081412 Page 1 
 

PAHRUMP TOWN BOARD MEETING 
NYE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 

2100 E WALT WILLIAMS DRIVE 
TUESDAY – 7:00 P.M. 

August 14, 2012 
MINUTES 

PRESENT:        
 Town Board:          

Vicky Parker 
Harley Kulkin 
Dr. Tom Waters 
Mike Darby       

Staff: 
Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager 
Michael Sullivan, Finance Director 
Scott Lewis, Fire Chief 
Matt Luis, Buildings & Grounds Manager 
Bret Meich, Attorney  
Samantha Carns, Executive Assistant 
 

1. Call to Order, Moment of Silence, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Vicky Parker called the meeting to order. 
Tom Waters led in the moment of silence and Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Moving the Order of or Deleting an Agenda Item(s). 
 
Harley Kulkin asked to hear 7(c) individually and table item 11 until further communications could 
be reached with Front Site. 
 
Mike Darby asked to open up items 9, 10, 13, and 14 for public comment. 
 
There were no objections  

3. Presentation by Mr. Lee Roy Tyon, Pahrump Resident on the Rendition of the Town of Pahrump 
Birthday song he created in both English and Sioux.   
 
Mr. and Mrs. Tyon spoke of the song and proceeded to read/sing their song in both English and 
Sioux. 

4. Presentation by Mr. Randy Burke, of Roadshows, Inc. on events that may be compatible for the Town 
of Pahrump.   
 
Mr. Kulkin introduced Randy Burke. 
 
Mr. Burke introduced himself and spoke of some of his accomplishments and projects with 
Roadshows. 
He also spoke of what he had seen in the community which would contribute to such an event.  

5. Announcements  
 
Announcements were read by Dr. Waters 
 



TBM 081412 Page 2 
 

Mrs. Parker announced a test site visit would be available for teenagers aged 14-18 on November 
14th however sign up and clearance needed to be done as soon as possible. 
 
Laurayne Murray announced Ms. Senior Golden Years and Queens Court would be holding a 
spaghetti dinner on Sunday August 19th. 

6. Public/Board/Staff Comment  
 
Public comment was heard. 
 
Mr. Kulkin thanked Butch Harper for his generous and kind work as an ambassador of Pahrump. 
He also spoke of the Fall Fair and Festival saying it had not been going very well and if it was to 
be a real success they needed the support of the entire community. 
He thanked PAVED for their past endeavors however it did not work out well. He let citizens 
know the Town was looking at making the event great again the following year. 
 
Mrs. Parker spoke of the need for volunteers specifically on advisory boards. 
 
Dr. Waters spoke of the Youth Advisory Board. 
 
Mr. Darby stated item 9 did need to be removed from the agenda as the costs would be covered by 
himself, Mr. Kohbarger, and Mr. Meich. 
 
Chief Scott Lewis spoke of the astounding efforts of the three Lieutenants including the newly 
appointed Lieutenant Perry especially while he was out of town the previous week. He spoke of 
Lieutenant Smith's attendance of a Fire Course which was done through FEMA. He said 
Lieutenant Moody had received much undeserved attention while he was away. He said the 
information provided had not been gross income and secondly was that during the time period 
Lieutenant Moody stepped up to the plate while he was the only LT available. 
 
Mr. Kulkin offered to pay the fees for item 10 however Laurayne Murray announced the venue 
had been moved to the Artesia community center. 
He asked the Ruud Center Fees be brought back to the agenda. 

7. Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items:   
a. Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 
b. Action – Approval of Town Board meeting minutes for July 24, 2012. 
c. Action – Approval of a Grant Application for approved expenses for the Pahrump Social 

Powwow from the State Tourism Room Tax Fund Not to Exceed $3,000.00.  
d. Action – Approval of a Grant Application for approved expenses for the Bob Baker Wild 

West Extravaganza from the State Tourism Room Tax Fund Grant Not to Exceed $3,500.00. 
e. Action – Approval of the Arena Policy and Fee Schedule 2012. 

 
Mr. Darby motioned to approve items a, b, and d. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 4-0. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger read the changes which had been made to the Arena Policies which were not 
in the backup. 
 
Dr. Waters said he was very impressed with the policies. 
 



TBM 081412 Page 3 
 

Mr. Darby stated it was a pleasure working with the Arena Advisory Board as Liaison. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned to approve item 7e with changes as read by Mr. Kohbarger. 
Mr. Darby seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 4-0. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger commended the Arena Advisory Board for all of their hard work. 
 
Mrs. Elefante said she asked her item be heard individually because she had applied for a 
cultural grant, not a marketing grant. She shared the Nevada Arts Councils and Nevada 
Cultural Affairs definition for cultural event/organizations. Mrs. Elefante spoke of necessities 
of the Powwow explaining all grants, if approved, would only account for 50% of the loss. 
She said she was only asking the costs of the drums and MC be covered. She said the cultural 
affairs guidelines for Pahrump Grants covered items other than marketing. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger asked about the projected loss of $1,642 asking if it regularly lost money. 
Mrs. Elefante said it had lost money in the each of the previous four years. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger said he felt the Powwow needed to look at how they were spending their 
money if they were consistently in the negative. 
He said with all grants you had to spend the money first and provide receipts after in order to 
be reimbursed. 
Mrs. Elefante said they had cut down on prize money and tried other options for 
entertainment and had done the best they could. 
 
Mrs. Parker explained about 3000 rooms in order to recoup the room tax as Mrs. Elefante 
continuously referred to. 
She said the purpose of this grant was to bring room tax in however it could not recoup these 
costs. 
She read a letter from the Staff Tourism Coordinator stating all qualified expenses had been 
granted provided the Powwow provided receipts. 
 
Dr. Waters said he would like to see the Powwow continue in Pahrump. He asked Mrs. 
Elefante what she felt they could do without violating any of the State provided guidelines 
and he had not yet heard that. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger said NCOT would walk Mrs. Elefante through the Cultural Grant. He said 
they could have done this and then asked the Town for a grant for advertising expenses. 
 
Mrs. Elefante said either the Town is supportive of this event or unsupportive.  
 
Mr. Kulkin asked if Mrs. Elefante was looking for the $3,000 or more. 
Mrs. Elefante said even if the $3,000 was approved she would only receive $1,500 due to the 
fact the PTCC said they wouldn't pay for the drums. 
Mr. Kulkin said the Town should be helping events to grow so they could be successful. If 
they had continuous loss then it should be re-evaluated. He said filling out grants was not a 
simple process. He said he felt the Town should go ahead and grant this. He said he felt we 
were a failure at bringing tourism and events to Town. He said he felt they needed to have an 
Event Advisory Board which was willing to work with the events and help them grown. 
 
Mr. Kulkin asked to direct staff to look at the tourism grant guidelines. 



TBM 081412 Page 4 
 

Mr. Kohbarger asked if Mr. Kulkin wanted the Town to continue giving money to the 
Powwow when they have lost money for years. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said he said he felt the Powwow had not been given a fair shot to succeed 
because they didn't have the right people working with them. 
 
Mrs. Parker said the goal of the PTCC was to support the event for the first two years as they 
started and then cut back on providing funds so the events could be self sufficient. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned to grant the Powwow $3,000 from the State Tourism Room Tax 
Fund. 
Motion died due to lack of a second. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve as written. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 3-0, with Mr. Darby unavailable. 

 
8. Advisory Board Reports from Advisory Board Chairpersons and/or Town Board Liaisons on the 

Status of Advisory Boards.   
 
Dr. Waters spoke of the Youth Advisory Board and Veterans Advisory Board. 

 
9. Discussion and Possible Decision to Approve Waiving the Bob Ruud Community Center (BRCC) 

Fees for the Southern Nye County 4-H Club for the Purpose of Holding their Annual 4-H Awards 
Banquet.   
(item pulled due to donations) 
 

10. Discussion and Possible Decision to Approve Waiving the Bob Ruud Community Center (BRCC) 
Fees for Ms. Senior Golden Years & her Queen Court who are requesting to hold a Spaghetti 
Dinner to Raise Funds for School Teachers on August 19, 2012.   
(item pulled due to applicant change of venue) 
 

11. Discussion and Possible Decision of a proposed Public Private Partnership between the Town of 
Pahrump and Front Sight Firearms Training Institute to lobby for the creation of enabling 
legislation for a special economic development zone that can assist Front Sight in their desired 
expansion needs and address future development needs such as Adventure Springs at the 
appropriate time.   
(item tabled) 

 
12. Discussion and Possible Decision to approve Re-bidding the Petrack Park Field “C” Lighting 

Project and All Matters Properly Related Thereto.   
 
Mr. Kohbarger stated the company which was previously selected could not be granted a bond 
from the bonding company due to the large difference in bids therefore the Town needed to go out 
and re-bid on the item. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve. 
Mr. Darby seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 4-0. 

 



TBM 081412 Page 5 
 

13. Discussion and Possible Decision to approve Phase I(c) of the Environmental Impact Statement 
(EIS) for the Proposed Pahrump Valley Airport in the amount of $667.687.00 in which the Town's 
contribution is 8% or $53,414.96.   
 
Mr. Kohbarger gave a brief update on the process. 
 
Dr. Waters said he believed the amount for the Town's contribution had been 5% but was now 8%. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger said the federal government had changed the rate to 8% for rural communities. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 3-1, with Mr. Darby voting nay. 

14. Discussion and Possible Decision on Creating PTO #65, An Ordinance to formalize Policy in Favor 
of the Public’s Right to Vote for or Against any Effort to Incorporate the Unincorporated Town of 
Pahrump and Other Matters Properly Related Thereto.   
 
Mr. Meich stated this was requested by the Town Board. He said state law controls the method for 
incorporation and this ordinance provided all of the power the Town Board had. 
 
Dr. Waters asked if it was legally enforceable. 
Mr. Meich replied it was not however it had been requested to be on the books. 
 
Dr. Waters asked if section one could be changed from should to shall. 
 
Mr. Kulkin motioned to adopt PTO #65 with the changes made in Section 1 to read ‘It is the 
official position of the Town Board of the Town of Pahrump that the registered voters of the 
Town of Pahrump shall have the right and opportunity to vote yea or nay for the effort to 
incorporate Pahrump. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
 
Mrs. Parker said she recognized the law was not legally enforceable however she did believe it 
should be passed to formalize Town Policy. 
 
Motion carried, 4-0. 
 

15. Closed Session(s). 
a. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding a Closed Session, to receive information and advice 

from the Town Attorney regarding potential or existing litigation pursuant to NRS 
241.015(2)(b)(2).   

b. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding a Closed Session pursuant to NRS 288.220 for 
purposes of conferring with the Town’s Management Representatives Regarding Labor 
Negotiations.   
 
The Town Board moved into closed session. 

16. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Issues Presented by the Town Attorney in closed session.   
 
Mrs. Parker said there was no action to be taken on this item. 
 



TBM 081412 Page 6 
 

17. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Reduction in Force of the Pahrump Valley Fire-Rescue 
Service due to a lack of funds or Approval of Negotiated Contract Terms.   
 
Mr. Darby motioned to accept the new MOU the Town Staff negotiated with the Fire Fighters 
Union. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 4-0. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger thanked the IAFF for stepping up and working with the Town. 

18. Future Meetings/Workshops: Date, Time and Location   

19. Public/Board/Staff Comment  
 
No one came forward for public comment. 
 
Dr. Waters stated it was untrue that the Town did not care about the proper us of the Tourism room 
tax fund. 

20. Adjournment  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:29pm. 

 


